**Chapter 315** 

Contents		
315.010	Title	4
315.015	Scope and Purpose	4
315.020	Definitions	4
315.100	Compliance with Ordinance and issuance of permits	. 18
315.125	Cultural Resources Overlay	. 18
315.150	Building Code	. 18
315.200	Classification of Zones	. 19
315.201	Zoning Map	. 19
BUILDIN	G PERMIT PROCESS AND PROCEDURE	. 19
315.205	Activities Not Requiring Permits	. 19
315.207	Activities Requiring Permits	. 19
315.210	Conditional Use Permit Application.	. 20
315.213	Building Permit Application.	. 20
315.215	Building Permit Application Fees and Use of Code Reviewing Firm	. 21
315.217	Building Permit Application Review – Residential Building Permits	. 21
315.218	Building Permit Application Review – Non-Residential Building Permits	. 21
315.220	Building Permit Application Review Meeting – Non-Residential Building Permits.	. 22
315.223	Decision Meeting- Non-Residential Building Permits	. 23
315.225	Bonding Requirement	. 23
315.227	Building Permit Terms and Conditions	. 24
315.230	Building Permit Modifications	. 24
315.233	Building Permit Duration and Extension.	. 24
315.235	Certificate Required.	. 25
315.237	CO Application	. 25
315.250	Purpose	. 26
315.270	Uses permitted	. 26
315.290	Permitted Accessory Uses	. 26

315.300	Conditional uses permitted	27
315.330	Purpose	29
315.340	Uses permitted	29
315.350	Permitted Accessory Uses	30
315.360	Conditional uses permitted	30
315.370	Development Standards	30
315.385	Purpose	32
315.390	Prohibited Uses	32
315.395	Allowed Uses	32
315.400	Purpose	32
315.403	Prohibited Uses	32
315.405	Purpose	33
315.410	Prohibited Uses	33
315.415	Allowed Uses	33
315.450	Minimum off-street parking space requirements	33
315.455	Design requirements for off-street parking	33
315.500	General provisions regarding accessory uses	35
315.505	Projections from buildings	35
315.510	Maintenance of minimum ordinance requirements	35
315.515	Exceptions to yard requirements	35
315.520	Access	36
315.525	Vision clearance areas	36
315.530	General provisions	36
315.535	Signs in Village Zone	36
315.540	Signs allowed without permit	37
315.545	Prohibited signs	39
315.600	Authorization to grant or deny variances	39
315.605	Conditions for granting a variance	40
315.610	Variance procedure	40
315.650	Continuation of nonconforming use or structure	40

315.655	Nonconforming structure	40
315.660	Discontinuance of a nonconforming use	41
315.665	Termination of certain nonconforming uses	41
315.670	Change of a nonconforming use	41
315.675	Destruction of a nonconforming use	41
315.680	Completion of structure	41
315.685	Temporary nonconforming uses	41
315.690	Standards governing conditional uses	42
315.700	Authorization to grant or deny conditional uses	43
315.705	Application for a conditional use	43
315.710	Hearing on conditional use	43
315.715	Notices	44
315.720	Hearing procedures	44
315.723	Appeals	45
315.725	Finality of Decisions	46
315.800	Civil Penalties	46
315.850	Conflicting laws	46
315.870	Severability	47
315.900	Sovereign Immunity	47

#### **Chapter 315**

#### **Land Development Ordinance**

#### 315.010 Title

This Ordinance shall be known as the Land Development Ordinance of the Coquille Indian Tribe.

#### 315.015 Scope and Purpose

This Ordinance shall apply to all land use activities on the Coquille Indian Tribe Empire Trust Land. The purpose of the Ordinance is to ensure that use of the Tribe's lands is appropriate and consistent with the goals, vision, and mission of the Coquille Indian Tribe.

#### 315.020 Definitions

In the following subsections are definitions of terms used in this Ordinance. If a term is not defined in this Ordinance, then it shall have the definition provided in the building code which is enforced within the Tribe at the time that the definition becomes applicable.

- 1. "Accessory Structure" or "Accessory Use": A non-dwelling unit/structure or use incidental, appropriate, and subordinate to the main structure or use on the same lot.
- 2. "Adult Entertainment Facilities" means enterprises predominantly involved, for commercial purposes, in the selling, renting, or presenting of books, magazines, motion pictures, films, video cassettes, cable television, live entertainment, performance, or activity distinguished or characterized by a predominant emphasis on the depiction, simulation, or relation to "specified sexual activities" as defined in this chapter for observation by patrons therein. Examples of such facilities include, but are not limited to, adult book or video stores and establishments offering panoramas, peep shows, or topless or nude dancing.
- 3. "Alley" means a narrow public right-of-way through a block primarily for utilities and access to the back or side of properties fronting another street.
- 4. "Animal Boarding or Kennel" means any premises where four or more dogs, cats, or other small animals or any combination thereof at least four months of age that are kept commercially or permitted to remain for board, propagation, training, or sale, excluding veterinary clinics and animal hospitals.
- 5. "Apartment". See "Dwelling, multi-family."
- 6. "Aquaculture" means the farming of aquatic organisms including fish, mollusks, crustaceans and aquatic plants.
- 7. "Barber" or "Beauty Shop" means a business for cutting and dressing hair, shaving and trimming beards, and performing related services.
- 8. "Building" means a structure, which is designated and suitable for the habitation or shelter of human beings or animals or the shelter or storage of property or for the use and occupation for some purpose of trade or manufacture.
- 9. "Business/Professional Offices" means a building that contains one or more dedicated

#### Chapter 315

#### **Land Development Ordinance**

spaces(offices) for professional services dealing with arts and sciences which require certifications such as accountants, doctors, lawyers, engineers, architects, supporting services such as accounting, bookkeeping, tax preparation, marketing, business consulting, and technology services.

- 10. "Caretaker Residence" means an accessory use dwelling unit for a caretaker that looks after or provides security for goods or property
- 11. "Canopy" means any shelter-like structure attached to a building and projecting over public or private property.
- 12. "Casino or Gaming Facility" means a place where any gaming activities such as to deal, operate, carry on, conduct, maintain, or expose to play any game, or to operate an inter-casino linked system is done.
- 13. "Cemetery" means any place, dedicated or not, used, or intended to be used for the permanent interment of human remains.
- 14. "Church" means a place of bona fide religious worship, and is not confined to any specific religion or sect.
- 15. "Commercial Fishing" means the taking of fish and other seafood and resources from oceans, rivers, and lakes for the purpose of commercial profit.
- 16. "Community Building" means a building with the primary objective to improve the area, neighborhood, and/or community and its social welfare and recreation.
- 17. "Comprehensive Plan" means a plan adopted by Coquille Indian Tribe's Tribal Council, and sets forth the long range goals of the members of CIT as along with their current and future needs. The major interest is to guide physical development, natural resources use, and delivery of Tribal services and programs to benefit Tribal members.
- 18. "Construction" means either: a. the first placement of permanent structure, including but limited to pouring slabs or footings, installing piles, constructing columns, or any work beyond the excavation stage, including placing a manufactured home on an existing foundation where no modifications are required; or b. for Substantial Improvement, altering any wall, ceiling, floor, or other structural part of a building whether or not that alteration affects the external dimensions of a building.
- 19. "Construction Plans" means plans and specifications drawn to scale upon substantial paper or cloth and that contain sufficient clarity to indicate the location, nature, and extent of the work proposed and show in detail that it will conform to the provision of this Ordinance, International Building Code, and all relevant laws and Ordinances of the CIT.
- 20. "Contiguous" means that which touches or connects, including that which only connects or touches a common point.
- 21. "Convention Facilities" or "Meeting Facilities" means a large building that is designed for individuals and groups to gather, promote, and share common interests and may contain an auditorium, concert halls, lecture halls, meeting rooms, and conference

#### Chapter 315

#### **Land Development Ordinance**

rooms.

- 22. "Dwelling Unit" means one or more rooms designed for occupancy by one family and not having more than one cooking facility, and requires a Certificate of Occupancy.
  - A. "Accessory Dwelling Unit" ("ADU") means one additional dwelling unit is allowed on a lot with a house and may be located within the main dwelling unit attached to the main dwelling unit, be detached from the main dwelling unit, or attached to a detached garage. The second dwelling unit is created as an auxiliary to, and must be smaller than, the main dwelling unit. The maximum size of an ADU may be no more than 800 square feet and no smaller than 400 square feet. The ADU must be a site-built, manufactured, or modular structure on a permanent foundation meeting adopted building code requirements. The ADU must remain on the same lot (no property sub-dividing) and under the same ownership as the main dwelling unit.
  - B. "Dwelling, Cluster Housing" means individual dwelling units are situated in groupings relatively close together, with a common open space.
  - C. "Dwelling, Community Housing or Rooming House" means a building where washing, kitchen and laundry facilities may be shared between residents, and may also share a common suite of living rooms and dining room.
  - D. "Dwelling, Duplex" or "Dwelling, Two-Family" means a building designed for residence purposes by not more than Two-Families and containing two dwelling units.
  - E. "Dwelling, Multifamily" means a building designed for residence by three or more families and containing three or more dwelling units.
  - F. "Dwelling, Row Home," "Row House," "Town Home," or "Town House" means a single-family dwelling unit constructed in a row of attached units separated by "zero-lot line" property lines and with open space (yards) on at least the front and rear sides.
  - G. "Dwelling, Single-Family" means a detached building designed or used for residence purposes by one family and containing one primary dwelling unit only.
  - H. "Dwelling, Tiny Home" means a dwelling unit that is 400 square feet or less in floor area excluding lofts.
  - I. "Dwelling, Two-Family" means either (a) a duplex; or (b) a Single Family Dwelling plus an Accessory Dwelling Unit, as defined above.
- 23. "Easement" means an interest, consisting of the right to use or control, for a specific limited purpose, land owned by another person, or an area above or below it, while title remains vested in the landowner. "Family" means an individual or two or more persons living together in a dwelling unit in which board and lodging are available; the total number of such persons shall not exceed one for every 200 square feet of living space within a dwelling unit.

#### Chapter 315

- 24. "Fence" means a fence or vegetative planting arranged in such a way as to obstruct vision.
- 25. "Financial Institution" means a company engaged in the business of dealing with financial and monetary transactions such as deposits, loans, investments, and currency exchange, including but not limited to a bank, trust company, insurance company, brokerage firm, and investment dealer.
- 26. "Floor Area" means the area included in surrounding walls of a building, or portion thereof, exclusive of vent shafts and courts.
- 27. "Floor Area Ratio (FAR)" means the relationship between the total amount of floor area a building has, or has been permitted to have and the total area of the lot on which the building is located on. FAR=Floor Area/Lot Area.
- 28. "Frontage" means all property abutting a public right-of-way or building frontage along a parking lot.
- 29. "Garage, Private" means an accessory building or portion of a main building used for parking or temporary storage of vehicles owned or used by occupants of the main building.
- 30. "Garage, Public" means a building other than a private garage used for the care and repair of motor vehicles or where such vehicles are parked or stored for compensation, hire or sale.
- 31. "General or Commercial Retail" means an activity involving the sale of goods or services carried out for profit. Includes office, retail, services, lodging, wholesale trade, and other similar development
- 32. "Gift Shop" means a store primarily selling souvenirs, memorabilia, and other items relating to a particular topic or theme.
- 33. "Government Facility" means a public building designed for administrative offices that support the government's ability to provide services to its constituents.
- 34. "Grade (ground level)" means the lowest point of elevation of the finished surface of the ground between the exterior wall of a structure and a point five feet from the structure. In case the walls are parallel to and within five feet of a public sidewalk, alley, or other public way the grade shall be the elevation of the sidewalk, alley or public way.
- 35. "Grade (adjacent ground level)" means the lowest point of elevation of the finished surface of the ground between the exterior wall of a structure and a point five feet from the structure. In the case of walls that are parallel to and within five feet of a public sidewalk, alley, or other public way the grade shall be the elevation of the sidewalk, alley or public way.
- 36. "Hazard Tree" means a dead, dying, or living tree that is unstable due to structural defects or other factors that is within striking distance of a structure or area where the potential exists for property damage or personal injury.

#### Chapter 315

- 37. "Health or Medical Facility" means an establishment primarily engaged in furnishing medical, surgical or other services to individuals
  - A. "Hospital" means an establishment which provides sleeping and eating facilities to persons receiving medical, obstetrical, or surgical care and a nursing service on a continuous basis.
  - B. "Assisted Living Home" or "Rest Home" means a facility with the primary focus is to help residents with activities of daily living with skilled nursing care.
  - C. "Nursing Home" means a facility with the primary focus is to help elderly residents with activities of daily living and includes skilled nursing care supervision 24 hours/7 days a week.
  - D. "Sanitarium" means a facility offering long-term medical care or treatment, therapy, or rehabilitation.
- 38. "Height of Building" means the vertical distance from the grade to the highest point of the coping of a flat roof or to the deck line of a mansard roof or to the average height of the highest gable of a pitch or hip roof.
- 39. "Home Occupation" means any occupation retail, service, or manufacturing which is clearly secondary to the main use of the premises as a dwelling place, but does not change the character thereof, have any exterior evidence of such secondary use except for a sign advertising such occupation, or impact the existing traffic pattern.
- 40. "Hotel" means a building in which lodging is provided to guests for compensation.
- 41. "Improvements" includes but are not limited to, streets, alleys, curbs, gutters, and appurtenances, sidewalks, street lights, street signs, fire hydrants, sanitary sewers and appurtenances, public water supply and water distribution systems and other utilities
- 42. "Land Development" means the subdividing or partitioning of land for any purpose or the creation of units or parcels for the purpose of sale or lease for a term of one year or more.
- 43. "Land-Use Map" means the map that specifies the areas that comprise the zones described in this Ordinance, which must be approved by Tribal Council resolution, and which may also be referred to as the "Zoning Map".
- 44. "Landscaping" means the arrangement of trees, grass, bushes, shrubs, flowers and garden areas, and incidental arrangements of fountains, patios, decks, street furniture and ornamental concrete or stonework areas, and artificial turf or carpeting, but excludes artificial plants, bushes, shrubs or flowers.
- 45. "Light Industrial" means a use engaged in the manufacture, predominantly from previously prepared materials, of finished products or parts, including process, fabrication, assembly, treatment, packaging, incidental storage, sales and distribution of such products, but excluding basic industrial processing.
- 46. "Lot" means, for the purposes of this Ordinance, a parcel or tract of land created by subdivision of land.

#### Chapter 315

- A. "Lot Area" means the total horizontal area within the lot lines of a lot.
- B. "Lot, Corner" means a lot abutting on two intersecting streets other than an alley; provided.
- C. "Lot Coverage" means the total lot area covered by structures and all other impervious surfaces.
- D. "Lot Depth" means the horizontal distance from the midpoint of the front lot line to the mid-point of the rear lot line.
- E. "Lot, Interior" means a lot other than a corner lot.
- F. "Lot Line" means the property line bounding a lot.
- G. "Lot Line, Front" means, in the case of an interior lot, the lot line separating the lot from the street other than an alley, and in the case of a corner lot, the front of the lot shall be the lot line on which the street address is assigned.
- H. "Lot Line, Rear" means a lot line which is opposite and most distant from the front lot line, and in the case of an irregular, triangular, or other shaped lot a line 10 feet in length within the lot parallel to and at a maximum distance from the front lot line.
- I. "Lot Line, Side" means any lot lines not a front or rear lot line.
- J. "Lot Width" means the horizontal distance between the side lot lines, ordinarily measured parallel to the front lot line.
- K. "Lot, Zero-Lot Line" means that a structure can be built up to/on a property line in residential settings such as a duplex or Row home.
- 47. "Manufactured Home (dwelling)" is defined as a structure constructed for movement on the public highways that has sleeping, cooking and plumbing facilities, that is intended for human occupancy, that is being used for residential purposes and that was constructed in accordance with federal manufactured housing construction and safety standards and regulations in effect at the time of construction.
- 48. "Manufactured Home Park" means any place where four or more manufactured homes are located within 500 feet of one another on a lot, tract or parcel of land under the same ownership, the primary purpose of which is to rent space or keep space for rent to any person for a charge or fee paid or to be paid for the rental or use of facilities, or to offer space free in connection with securing the trade or patronage of such person.
- 49. "Manufactured Structure" means a building greater than 120 square feet that is designed to be, transported after fabrication to the site where it will be installed; arriving at the site where it is to be occupied, complete and ready for occupancy except for minor and incidental unpacking and assembly operations, location of foundation supports, connection to utilities.
- 50. "Marquee" means a permanent or temporary roofed structure attached to, supported by the building, and projecting over public property.

#### Chapter 315

- 51. "Motel" means a building or group of buildings on the same lot containing guest units with separate entrances directly to the exterior and consisting of individual sleeping quarters, detached or in connected rows, with or without cooking facilities, for rental to transients.
- 52. "Multi-Tenant Retail/Commercial Facility" means a single building that contains enough space to hold two or more independent establishments.
- 53. "Mural" means any pictorial or graphic decoration other than a sign which is applied directly to a structure and is neither used for, or intended to achieve the purposes of, advertising by the use of lettering or script to draw attention to or to direct the observer to a particular business or business location, nor to draw attention to specific products, goods or service by the use of a brand name, trademark, copyright or any other device restricted in use without permission of the owner.
- 54. "Neighborhood Commercial/Retail" means a building/space for small businesses which serve the retail and personal services needs of the local community, while keeping the scale of space limited in size to fit into community without creating land use, architectural, or traffic conflicts.
- 55. "Nonconforming Structure or Use" means a lawful existing structure or use at the time this Ordinance or any amendment thereto becomes effective which does not conform to the requirements of the zone in which it is located.
- 56. "Open Space" means land perpetually set aside and maintained for the conservation/preservation of natural features or scenic amenities, for bicycle/pedestrian access ways.
  - A. "Parks" means a designated site designed or developed for recreational use by the public including but not limited to indoor park facilities (activity centers, swimming pools), outdoor park facilities for active recreation (sport fields, playfields, and related), or outdoor areas for passive recreation (conservation areas, typically with nonmotorized trails).
  - B. "Plazas" means a designated small urban park that is centrally located and designed for the public to walk, sit, and congregate.
  - C. "Playground" means a designated area designed for children that contains recreational equipment such as slides, swings, and climbing structures.
- 57. "Overlay Zone" means a regulatory tool that creates a special zoning district, placed over an existing zone(s), which identifies special provisions in addition to those in the underlying zone. An overlay zone can share common boundaries with the base zone or cut across base zone boundaries.
- 58. "Parking Space" means a rectangle not less than eighteen feet long and nine feet wide together with access space sufficient to permit a standard automobile to be parked within the rectangle without the necessity of moving other vehicles.
- 59. "Permit" means a document issued by the Permit Administrator that authorizes the applicant to start construction (see Start of Construction), development, or use of the

#### **Chapter 315**

#### **Land Development Ordinance**

project for which the permit was issued and in the manner approved by the Permit Administrator. As used in this ordinance, the phrase "building permit" means a Permit as defined here. There are typically at least five types of permits related to a construction project: (a) road construction grading/fill, (b) structural, (c) electrical, (d) plumbing and (e) mechanical. Permits also includes land use permits such as Conditional Use Permits and Variance Permits.

- 60. "Permit Administrator" means the person or persons appointed and designated by the Tribal Council to carry out permitting, review, and enforcement responsibilities under this Ordinance.
- 61. "Person" means every natural person, firm, partnership, association or corporation.
- 62. "Planning Review Team" means the advisory and decision-making body appointed by the Tribal Council to carry out certain functions under this Ordinance. By resolution, the Tribal Council may: (a) identify the Planning Review Team as a category of advisory group described under CITC Chapter 144, as that Ordinance may be amended from time to time; and (b) adopt bylaws for the Planning Review Team.
- 63. "Plat" means the final map, diagram, drawing, replat or other writing containing all the descriptions, locations, specifications, dedications, provisions, and information required for a legal land description.
- 64. "Primary Use" means the first use to which property is or may be devoted, and to which all other uses on the premises are derived as accessory or secondary uses. As used relative to dwelling units, the primary dwelling would be the first dwelling unit to be located on a specific parcel or lot.
- 65. "Public" means members of the Coquille Indian Tribe and residents or lessees of Coquille Indian Reservation lands.
- 66. "Recreational Vehicle (RV) Park" means a parcel of land upon which two or more recreational vehicles are occupied for dwelling or sleeping purposes for no more than 60 days during any one hundred twenty day period, recreational vehicles are located, regardless of whether a charge is made for such accommodations.
- 67. "Reservation" has the meaning used in the Coquille Restoration Act.
- 68. "Residential" means any dwelling unit or group of units built or used for human occupancy.
- 69. "Restaurant or Eating Establishment" means a place where people pay to eat and sit for foods that are prepared, cooked, and served on the premises.
- 70. "Right-of-Way" means the area between the boundary lines of a street, road, or other easement.
- 71. "Road" or "Street" means a publicly accessible way that is created to provide ingress or egress for persons to one or more lots, parcels, or areas of tracts of land.
- 72. "Roadway" means the portion of a road/street right-of-way developed for automobile traffic.

#### **Chapter 315**

- 73. "Roof Line" means the top edge of a roof or the top of the parapet, whichever forms the top line of a building silhouette.
  - A. "School Facility" means a place or institution for the instruction of children in a setting other than their primary place of residence; also, an institution for instruction in a skill or business. A school includes the building or group of buildings in which instruction is given. A school also includes any nursery, day care, head start, primary, elementary, middle school, junior high, high school, vocational school, or college.
- 74. "Screening" has the same meaning as "Fence, sight-obscuring."
- 75. "Service drive" means a driveway entering a street from a drive-in business establishment or from an off-street parking area, excluding residential driveways, serving fewer than five dwelling units.
- 76. "Service Station" means a building or structure designed or used for the retail sale or supply of fuels, lubricants, air, water, other operating commodities for motor vehicles or boats, and food and beverages as an accessory to automobile related uses.
- 77. "Setback" means the minimum allowable horizontal distance from a given point or line of reference, such as property line, to the nearest vertical wall or other element of a building or structure as defined herein.
  - A. "Setback, Front" means an open space free from structures extending the full width of the lot between a building and the front lot line, except as specified elsewhere in this Ordinance. Distances referred to throughout this Ordinance shall constitute building setback requirements.
  - B. "Setback, Rear" means an open space free from structures extending the full width of the lot between a building and the rear lot line, except as specified elsewhere in this Ordinance. Distances referred to throughout this Ordinance shall constitute building setback requirements.
  - C. "Setback, Side": means an open space free from structures extending the full length from the front setback to the rear setback, except as specified elsewhere in this Ordinance. Distances referred to throughout this Ordinance shall constitute building setback requirements.
- 78. "Sidewalk" A pedestrian walkway with permanent surfacing.
- 79. "Site Plan" means a plan prepared to scale, showing accurately and with complete dimensioning, all property lines, easements, and required separation distances between the proposed structures, property lines, streams, and utility improvements.
- 80. "Sign" means any device designed to inform or to attract the attention of persons not on the premises.
  - A. "Sign, Animated Electric" means electronic video or digital signs that display changing images, animated scenes or pictures. Animated electric signs that are distracting or confusing and may constitute a hazard to the public health, safety or

#### Chapter 315

- welfare are not allowed in any zone. Definition does not include reader boards.
- B. "Sign Area" means an area measured within lines drawn between the outermost points of a sign but excluding essential sign structure, foundations or supports lying outside and below the limits of a sign and not forming an integral part of the display.
- C. "Sign, Awning" means a sign constructed of a fabric-like non-rigid material which is part of a fabric or plastic awning.
- D. "Sign, Banner" means any sign intended to be hung either with or without frames, possessing characters, letters, illustrations, or ornamentations applied to paper, plastic or fabric of any kind.
- E. "Sign, Billboard" means a sign which advertises a business, commodity or activity which is not sold, manufactured or conducted on the property where the sign is located.
- F. "Sign, Commercial/Business" means signs which are placed on buildings listing the name of one or more businesses, activities, products, or professional offices conducted or sold within a building, group of buildings, or commercial center.
- G. "Sign, Construction" means signs identifying the architect, engineer, contractor, or other firm involved with building construction, and naming the building or its purpose, and the expected completion date.
- H. "Sign, Directional or Wayfinding" means an on-premises or off-premise sign which carries no advertising message but simply the name or logo of an establishment and information directing persons to parking areas, entrance or exit ways, etc.
- I. "Sign, Double-faced" means a sign with advertising on two surfaces, generally back to back or with an angle that does not exceed 45 degrees.
- J. "Sign, Freestanding" means a sign erected on a freestanding frame, mast, or pole supported in or on the ground and not attached to any building. Freestanding signs may be temporary or permanent and must comply with all other sign requirements for the zone.
- K. "Sign, Height of" is measured from the lowest point of the grade below the sign to the topmost point of the sign.
- L. "Sign, Indirect Illumination" means a source of illumination directed toward a sign so that the beam of light falls upon the exterior surface of the sign.
- M. "Sign, Marquee" means a sign affixed to a marquee or projecting roof structure over the entrance to a building, store, or place of public assembly with changeable letters.
- N. "Sign, Memorial" means non-illuminated memorial signs or tablets indicating the name of a building and/or the date of erection, and which do not exceed five square feet.

#### Chapter 315

- O. "Sign, Monument" means a low profile free-standing sign affixed to the ground, and which includes a support structure of wood, masonry or concrete that is incorporated into the overall design of the sign.
- P. "Sign, Nameplate" means non-illuminated, single faced, wall-mounted nameplates indicating only the name, address, and occupation of the occupant, and which do not exceed two square feet.
- Q. "Sign, Roof" means a sign constructed upon the roof of a building.
- R. "Sign, Single-Faced" means a sign with advertising on only one side.
- S. "Sign, Special Event" means signs or outdoor displays of a temporary nature advertising or promoting a specific event.
- T. "Sign, Political Campaign" means a sign promoting a political candidate or other public election matter.
- U. "Sign, Portable" means a freestanding sign such as an "A-frame" not permanently affixed, anchored, or secured to the ground or a structure on the lot it occupies, including trailer signs but excluding signs affixed to or painted on a vehicle.
- V. "Sign, Private Traffic Directional" means signs guiding vehicular and pedestrian traffic on private property that contains a name or logo but no other advertising copy.
- W. "Sign, Projecting" means a sign other than a wall-mounted sign which projects from and is supported by a wall of a building or structure.
- X. "Sign, Public" means signs of a public or non-commercial nature, which shall include public transit service signs, public utility information signs, directional signs, safety signs, danger signs, signs indicating scenic or historical points of interest, and all signs erected by a public officer in the performance of a public duty.
- Y. "Sign, Reader Board" means a sign with letters and/or advertising that can be readily changed and includes electronic message or mechanical reader boards but does not include animated electronic signs.
- Z. "Sign, Real Estate" means a sign advertising the sale, rental, or lease of the premises or part of the premises on which the signs are displayed.
- AA. "Sign, Temporary" means a sign which is erected or displayed temporarily for a particular event, occurrence, or purpose as specified by this Ordinance.
- BB. "Sign, Vehicle" means advertising copy painted or affixed to lawfully parked and operable vehicles or trailers.
- CC. "Sign, Wall-mounted" means a sign affixed directly to or painted or otherwise inscribed on an exterior wall and confined to the limits thereof.
- DD. "Sign, Window" means any sign, picture, symbol, banner, message or combination thereof designed to communicate information about the business,

#### Chapter 315

#### **Land Development Ordinance**

event, sale, or service placed inside or upon the window with the primary purpose of being viewed from the exterior.

- 81. "Shared Parking Facilities" means an off-street parking facility that is used by two or more different land-uses.
- 82. "Start of Construction" generally means the date the building permit was issued, provided that the actual start of construction, repair, reconstruction, placement, Substantial Improvement (as provided below) or other improvement commences within 180 days of the permit issuance date Otherwise the start of construction shall be the actual start of construction. For the purposes of this definition, "actual start of construction" means either the first placement of a permanent part of a structure on a site, such as the pouring of a slab or footings, installation of piles, construction of columns, any work beyond the stage of excavation, or the placement of a manufactured structure on a foundation. Land preparation, such as clearing, grading and filling, excavation for a basement, footings, piers, foundations or the erection of temporary forms shall not be considered the actual start of construction. For Substantial Improvements, the actual start of construction shall be the first alteration of any wall, ceiling, floor, or other structural part of a building, whether or not that alteration affects the external dimensions of the building.
- 83. "Story" means that portion of a building included between the upper surface of any floor and the upper surface of the floor next above, except that the top story shall be that portion of a building included between the upper surface of the top floor and the ceiling above. If the finished floor level directly above a basement or cellar is more than six feet above grade, the basement or cellar shall be considered a story.
- 84. "Storage Facility" means any real property designed and used for the purpose of renting or leasing individual storage space to occupants who are to have access to such facility for the purpose of storing of property.
- 85. "Streams" refer to those areas of the Coquille Indian Reservation where surface waters have sufficient flow to produce a defined channel or bed, in which A channel or bed does not have to contain water year-round to indicate the presence of a stream, so long as there is no vegetation in the stream channel, there is a defined channel, and there are signs of annual scour and deposition. A "stream" does not include areas identified as artificial watercourses (constructed stormwater drainage systems) unless they are used to convey class 1 or 2 streams that occurred naturally prior to construction of the artificial drainage network.
  - A. Class 1 Stream. "Class 1 stream" means all streams that flow year round during years of normal rainfall or are used by salmonids.
  - B. Class 2 Stream. "Class 2 stream" means all streams that are intermittent or ephemeral during years of normal rainfall and are not used by salmonids.
- 86. "Stream Buffers" refer to the zone contiguous with a sensitive aquatic environment that is required to protect and maintain the functions and structural stability of that environment. The critical functions of a buffer associated with an aquatic system

#### **Chapter 315**

#### **Land Development Ordinance**

(riparian buffers) include, but are not limited to, shading, the existence of organic debris and course sediments, uptake of nutrients, stabilization of banks, interception of fine sediments, storage of overflow during high water events, protection from disturbance by humans and domestic animals, preservation of wildlife, fish and plant habitat, preservation of wildlife migration corridors, and room for slight variation of aquatic system boundaries over time due to hydrologic or climatic effects.

- A. The critical functions of terrestrial buffers include, but are not limited to, protection of slope stability, protection from disturbance by human and domestic animals, attenuation of surface water flows from storm water runoff and precipitation, and erosion control.
- B. The required buffer width for freshwater wetlands or streams shall be dependent upon the class of the wetland or stream.
- 87. "Street" See "Road".
- 88. "Structural Alteration" means a change to the supporting members of a structure including foundations, bearing walls or partitions, columns, beams or girders, the roof, retaining walls, or similar components.
- 89. "Structure" means an edifice or building of any kind or any piece of work artificially built up or composed of parts joined together in some definite manner and which requires location on the ground or which is attached to something having a location on the ground including swimming and wading pools and covered patios, excluding outdoor areas such as paved areas, driveways, walks and fences.
- 90. "Subdivision" means an area or tract of land divided into four or more lots within a ten year time period beginning from the date of approval of a land partition, when this area or tract of land exists as a unit or contiguous units of land under single ownership at the beginning of that time period.
- 91. "Substantial Damage" means damage from any origin sustained by a structure whereby the cost of restoring the structure to its pre-damage condition would equal or exceed 50 percent its pre-damage market value.
- 92. "Substantial Improvement" means any repair, reconstruction, or improvement to a structure that costs 50 percent or more of its market value either: a) Before the improvement or repair is started; or b) If the structure has been damaged and is being restored, before the damage occurred; but not including either the cost of improvements to a structure to correct a violation of a Tribal ordinance that has been identified by the tribal official responsible for the administration of the ordinance and is the minimum improvement necessary to comply with the ordinance, or alteration of a structure listed on the National Register of Historic Places or any Coquille Tribe-authorized inventory of historic places.
- 93. "Tentative Plan" means a preliminary map, drawing, or chart of the subdivision, dedication, or portion thereof, containing the elements and requirements set forth within this Ordinance and which the subdivider submits for tentative approval of the Planning Review Team t.

#### Chapter 315

- 94. "Timber Harvest" means the removal of timber from a property in an amount greater than 5,000 board foot gross volume.
- 95. "Tower, Communication" means a pole, or similar structure of any size which supports wireless telecommunication equipment, transmission or reception, and is utilized by commercial, governmental, or other public or quasi-public users, above ground in a fixed location, freestanding, guyed, or on a structure. A Communication Tower may also be utilized as part of a mobile system for purposes of providing short-term emergency, supplemental or specialized wireless telecommunications services.
- 96. "Trust Land" means any land/property CIT owns, for which the legal title is held by the United States for the benefit b of the Tribe.
- 97. "Use" means the purpose for which land or a structure is designed, arranged, or intended, or for which it is occupied or maintained.
- 98. "Uses, Allowed" means a property owner or property lessee's use of property and structures in manners consistent with that which is listed as permissible in the zoning district in which the property is located and is therefore not subject to special review and approval.
- 99. "Uses Allowed, Conditional" means a use that may be permitted or denied at the discretion of the Planning Review Team based on finding of facts as required by this Ordinance.
- 100. "Utility Facility" means a building necessary for the transmission, maintenance, and/or function of a utility, where personnel are only periodically present to maintain or upgrade equipment.
- 101. "Variance" means a permit granted by the Planning Review Team for an action or development which is otherwise prohibited by the Land Development Ordinance.
- 102. "Veterinary Clinic" means a business established in which veterinary services are rendered to domestic animals.
- 103. "Violation" means the circumstances which exist when the required approval for a land use or practice has not been granted and the violator has commenced the use or practice.
- 104. "Violator" means any person, including but not limited to the landowner, equipment operators, and building contractors, who commits a violation.
- 105. "Vision Clearance Area" means a triangular area on a lot at the intersection of two streets or a street and a railroad, two sides of which are lot lines measured from the corner intersection of the lot lines for a distance specified in these regulations. The third side of the triangle is a line across the corner of the lot joining the ends of the other two sides. Where the lot lines at intersections have rounded corners, the plot lines will be extended in a straight line to a point of intersection. The vision clearance area shall contain no plantings, walls, structures, or temporary or permanent obstructions exceeding three and one-half feet in height measured from the top of the curb.

#### **Chapter 315**

#### **Land Development Ordinance**

- 106. "Wholesale Supply" means the sale of merchandise in bulk to a retailer for repackaging and resale in smaller quantities at a higher price.
- 107. "Zone Boundaries" Unless otherwise specified, zone boundaries are lot lines or the center lines of streets, alleys, railroad right-of-way, or such lines extended.
- 108. "Zoning Map" see "Land-Use Map"

#### 315.100 Compliance with Ordinance and issuance of permits

- 1. Applications for new construction, reconstruction and/or alterations to an existing structure must be completed along with the required documentation and fees, and approved with permits issued by the Tribal Council or their designee before the work can commence.
- 2. No structure or premises may be used or occupied, and no structure or part of a structure may be erected, moved, reconstructed, extended, enlarged, or otherwise altered, except as permitted by this Ordinance.
- 3. Applications for occupancy permits shall list the names and addresses of the leaseholders and occupants of the premises. Occupancy permits shall describe the business or activity for which the premises may be used or occupied and such permit shall be posted in a conspicuous place at such premises.

#### 315.125 Cultural Resources Overlay

The Tribal Historic Preservation Officer must approve permitting for any ground disturbing activity within a cultural resources overlay area that is developed by the Tribal Historic Preservation Officer and approved by the Tribal Council.

#### 315.150 Building Code

Unless the Tribal Council provides otherwise by resolution, which it may do on a case-by-case basis, construction on Trust Land beginning after January 1, 2020 must comply with the most recent version of the following:

- 1. International Building Code, as amended and updated;
- 2. International Residential Code, as amended and updated;
- 3. International Mechanical Code, as amended and updated;
- 4. International Plumbing Code, as amended and updated; and
- 5. International Fire Code, as amended and updated.

#### **Chapter 315**

#### **Land Development Ordinance**

#### 315.200 Classification of Zones

For the purpose of this Ordinance, the Reservation lands are divided into zones designated as follows:

Village	(V)
Employment	(E)
Forest	(F)
Open Space	(OS)
Agriculture	(A)

#### **315.201 Zoning Map**

The location and boundaries of zones designated in CIT Chapter 315 shall be established in the K'vn-da Xwvn-de' Yesterday & Tomorrow Comprehensive Land-Use Plan ,and the Land-Use Property Maps, as they are adopted or amended from time to time.

#### **BUILDING PERMIT PROCESS AND PROCEDURE**

#### 315.205 Activities Not Requiring Permits

Any land use permitted outright in any zone, but not including the construction of buildings or structures, may be conducted without seeking a permit, provided it is conducted in accordance with the provisions of this Ordinance. Nothing in this Ordinance shall be construed to authorize any party to possess any interest in lands.

#### 315.207 Activities Requiring Permits

- 1. Building Permit. Except as otherwise authorized in this Ordinance, no building or other structure may be erected, moved, added to, or undergo a Structural Alteration without a building permit.
- 2. Conditional Use Permit. Except as otherwise authorized in this Ordinance, no person shall engage in any land use that may only be conducted as a conditional use within a zone without first obtaining a conditional use permit from the Tribal Council or its designee. Conditional use permit requirements are more fully addressed in CITC 315.705.

Coquille Indian Tribe

#### **Chapter 315**

#### **Land Development Ordinance**

#### 315.210 Conditional Use Permit Application

A conditional use permit application shall contain, at a minimum, the following information:

- 1. The legal description of the land involved;
- 2. Name or names of the leaseholder(s), leaseholder mortgagee and all other persons with any legal or beneficial interest in the land;
- 3. Description of the current land use and all existing building or structures;
- 4. Description of the land use proposed, including plans of any buildings, roads, structures, or land or vegetation disturbing activities proposed;
- 5. The applicant's explanation of how the building to be built or the conditional use conforms to the requirements of this Ordinance; and,
- 6. Such additional information as the Permit Administrator may require at the time of application or thereafter as may be necessary to determine conformance with this Ordinance.

The Tribal Council may develop or designate forms for use as conditional use permit applications.

#### 315.213 **Building Permit Application**

An application for a building or conditional use permit shall be made through the use of forms developed or designated by the Tribal Council. The applicant shall submit a building or conditional use permit application and any studies, reports, or other reasonable information requested by the Tribal Council or its designee.

Every application shall contain, at a minimum, the following information:

- 1. The name and title of the applicant;
- 2. The location of the proposed activity;
- 3. A concise and factual description of the proposed activity including:
  - A. Any proposed physical construction;
  - B. Any use of natural resources; and
  - C. Any potential impacts to the environment, whether adverse or beneficial.
- 4. A detailed site plan;
- 5. A period of time for which the permit is requested;
- 6. A reference to the Tribal zoning laws governing the proposed land use activity or project;
- 7. A complete set of detailed plans and specifications, including but not limited to, any proposed structures showing compliance with building, fire, and safety codes; and
- 8. In the case of a phased land use activity or project, the applicant shall submit a complete set of detailed plans and specifications for that portion of the land use activity or project.

#### **Chapter 315**

#### **Land Development Ordinance**

#### 315.215 Building Permit Application Fees and Use of Code Reviewing Firm

Upon the submission of the permit application, the applicant shall pay a permit application fee according to the following schedule:

- 1. A residential building permit application fee of \$25 per issued permit; and
- 2. A non-residential building permit application fee of \$1 per \$100 of the total cost of the commercial/governmental community land use activities or projects.
- 3. In addition to any building permit application fee, an applicant will pay plan review and construction inspection fees. Plan Review and inspection fees will be the actual cost passed through from the Code Reviewing firm to the applicant.
- 4. Entities of the Coquille Indian Tribe carrying out such activities for governmental or public purposes may be exempt from payment of the building permit application fee, but not the construction inspection and plan review fee. Exemptions will be authorized by the Executive Director, or if unavailable, the acting Executive Director, or such other person designated by Tribal Council resolution.
- 5. The Tribe may use an employee or contracted Code Reviewing firm to assess whether a permit application complies with applicable building and construction codes, including those identified in CITC 315.150.

### 315.217 Building Permit Application Review – Residential Building Permits

- 1. The Permit Administrator shall review the Residential Building Permit application and determine whether the permit application is complete. If a permit application is complete, the Permit Administrator shall then conduct an administrative review of the application, including site review, plan review, environmental review and cultural review.
- 2. The Permit Administrator shall determine whether the application complies with Tribal Ordinances and all applicable Tribal land use and zoning laws.
- 3. The Permit Administrator shall issue or deny a permit within two weeks of receiving a complete application.
- 4. An applicant may appeal a denial of the permit to the Tribal Court per the procedures set out in section 315.723 of this Ordinance. If the Permit Administrator fails to issue or deny a permit by the end of the two week period described above, it shall be treated as a denial for purposes of appeal.

### 315.218 Building Permit Application Review – Non-Residential Building Permits

- 1. For all other building permit applications that are for uses other than residential use, the Permit Administrator shall follow the procedures set out in CITC 315.218 to 315.223.
- 2. The Permit Administrator shall first review the permit application and determine whether the permit application is complete. If a permit application is complete, the Permit

#### **Chapter 315**

#### **Land Development Ordinance**

- Administrator shall then direct the appropriate Tribal programs to review the application and establish a time period for the submission of written findings to the Permit Administrator. The Permit Administrator may request review of permit applications by Tribal offices, agencies or programs whose laws are enforced under this Ordinance.
- 3. Within one (1) week of receiving the application, the Permit Administrator may request the applicant to submit additional information, studies, or reports to assist in the review of the permit application. The additional information must be relevant to the purposes and policies of this Ordinance. If the additional information is requested, the Permit Administrator shall notify the applicant of the requested information and shall set a reasonable time period for the submission of the information.
- 4. Within one week of receiving the application or additionally requested information, the Permit Administrator shall submit written findings to the applicant regarding the permit application. If additional review time is requested, the Permit Administrator may grant one extension of time not to exceed two weeks. The written findings shall address whether or not the activity or project proposed by the application complies with Tribal policies and the Tribal land use laws. The written findings shall provide specific recommendations indicating how the proposed land use activity or project should be tailored to ensure such compliance.
- 5. The Permit Administrator shall provide the written findings to the applicant within one week of receipt thereof.

# 315.220 Building Permit Application Review Meeting – Non-Residential Building Permits

- 1. The Permit Administrator shall schedule regular permit application review meetings as needed, to review the written findings with the applicant and the Tribal programs. The Permit Administrator shall notify the applicant and the appropriate Tribal programs of the meeting scheduled for the permit application review.
- 2. At the permit application review meeting, the Permit Administrator may determine, based on the written findings and discussion with the Tribal programs, that the permit application requires either no and/or minor changes; or significant material changes.
- 3. If the applicant agrees with the written findings or recommended changes, the applicant shall incorporate such changes into his/her application and the application shall be scheduled for final review by the Permit Administrator.
- 4. If the applicant does not agree with the recommended changes, the applicant will have an opportunity to review the written findings and recommendations with the Permit Administrator at the next scheduled review meeting following the permit application review meeting. The applicant shall provide a narrative detailing why the applicant does not agree with the requirements prior to the meeting.

#### Chapter 315

#### **Land Development Ordinance**

#### 315.223 Decision Meeting- Non-Residential Building Permits

- 1. The Tribal Council or its designee shall reach a decision to approve or deny a permit, render a written decision, and notify the parties within thirty (30) days of the initial review meeting at which the application was scheduled for review. The Tribal Council's decision may specify terms and conditions to be included in the permit. At the applicant's request, the Tribal Council may grant one extension of time, up to thirty (30) days, to render the Council's decision.
- 2. If the permit application is denied or not approved within the time frame set out above through a decision of the Tribal Council or its designee, the applicant may either submit a new application or appeal the Tribal Council's decision pursuant to CITC 315.723.

#### 315.225 Bonding Requirement

The Permit Administrator may require the posting of a performance bond, in an amount and of duration satisfactory to assure and guarantee the completing of site improvements including, but not limited to, grading, regrading, drainage, pollution prevention, cultural resource monitoring/mitigation, site remediation, environmental controls, erosion control, lighting, screening, planting, building or safety improvements, and other reasonable conditions indicated on a site plan which will assure compliance with this Ordinance, or applicable Tribal laws.

- 1. A performance or payment bond shall be delivered to the Coquille Indian Tribe in one of the following forms: a certified check drawn from a bank fully insured by the FDIC; a pledge of a bank book, fully insured by an agency of the United States government, with irrevocable power of attorney and acknowledged by the bank in which the funds are deposited; or a corporate surety bond issued by a surety company on the U.S. Department of Treasury approved surety list. The bond shall insure the completion of required improvements and utilities in the event the applicant shall fail to install site improvements within five (5) years from the date of the bond. The term of the performance bond may be extended by the Permit Administrator upon approval of a petition from the applicant to the Permit Administrator and subject to agreement of such extension by the surety company. Tribal entities carrying out construction activities for governmental or public purposes may be exempted from the bonding requirement, so long as the contractors carrying out the work carry a performance and payment bond in a sufficient amount.
- 2. The applicant may apply to the Permit Administrator for a reduction in bond when fifty percent (50%) of the cost of required improvements for the project have been completed and may apply to the Permit Administrator for further reduction in the bond when seventy-five percent (75%) of the cost of required improvements for the project have

### Chapter 315

#### **Land Development Ordinance**

- been completed. Requests for such reduction shall be made in writing to the Permit Administrator with a fully executed copy of the bond form attached thereto.
- 3. Prior to the release of the performance bond, the applicant shall present a maintenance bond equal to at least ten percent (10%) of the initial performance bond. Such bond shall be for a period of (one) year and shall guarantee the improvements installed.

#### 315.227 Building Permit Terms and Conditions; Leases

Upon approving a permit application, the Permit Administrator may include terms and conditions that are reasonably necessary and appropriate for ensuring compliance with Tribal ordinances and Tribal land use and zoning laws. If an activity associated with a building permit also requires a lease or sublease, the Permit Administrator should coordinate the building permit review with the development of such leasing document(s). In such cases, no building permit shall be issued unless (1) the lease document has been executed; or (2) the planner has received written assurances that the appropriate leasing document shall be executed within a time period that the Permit Administrator determines—in their sole discretion—to be reasonable.

#### 315.230 **Building Permit Modifications**

- 1. If significant and material changes have occurred since the approval of the permit, the permittee shall file a permit modification application describing the changes, the proposed modifications to the permit, and any necessary information regarding the implementation of such changes.
- 2. The permit modification application shall demonstrate that the proposed changes comply with the Tribal ordinances and Tribal land use and zoning laws.
- 3. The Permit Administrator shall review the permit modification application with the permittee and inspect the project. The Tribal Council or its designee, based on the Permit Administrator's recommendations, may either approve the application and modify the permit or deny the application.
- 4. If the permit modification application is denied, the existing permit shall remain in full force, and effect and the permittee may request a hearing with the Tribal Council to review the Permit Administrator's decision. If the Tribal Council denies or refuses to act on the appeal, the permittee may appeal to the Tribal Court pursuant to the procedures set out in CITC 315.723.

#### 315.233 Building Permit Duration and Extension

1. All permits shall be effective for a specified period of time appropriate to the project but in no event shall the period exceed two years. If a permittee requires an extension of time in order to complete any activity under an approved permit, the permittee shall file an

#### **Chapter 315**

#### **Land Development Ordinance**

- extension request no later than forty-five (45) days prior to the expiration of the permittee's existing permit.
- 2. The Permit Administrator shall review the permit extension request with the permittee and inspect the project. The Permit Administrator shall either approve the extension under such terms and conditions as the Permit Administrator deems necessary or appropriate or request that the permittee obtain a permit modification.

#### CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY OR COMPLETION

#### 315.235 Certificate Required

No land use activity or building project shall be occupied, used, or operated, in whole or in part, until a Certificate of Occupancy or Completion (hereafter "CO") has been issued by the Permit Administrator stating that the land use activity or project complies with all building, fire, and safety codes, and the terms and conditions of the permit.

#### 315.237 CO Application

- 1. Upon the completion of the land use activity or project, the permittee shall apply for a CO. Within one week of receiving the CO application, the Permit Administrator shall review the CO application and inspect the project.
- 2. Within one week of reviewing the CO application, the Permit Administrator may either approve the CO application, and thereupon issue a CO, or notify the permittee in writing of the measures required to attain compliance with the terms and conditions of the permit.
- 3. Upon completion of the required compliance measures, the permittee shall submit a revised CO application demonstrating evidence of compliance.
- 4. The Permit Administrator may, at his/her discretion, issue a temporary or a partial CO if the land use activity or project is substantially complete and the completed portion of the land use activity or project has satisfied the required compliance measures. The temporary CO shall specify the time-frame within which the remaining required compliance measures shall be completed. The partial CO shall specify the portion of the structure that may be occupied or used. Failure to complete the required compliance measures within the established time-frame may result in enforcement action.
- 5. If the permittee fails or refuses to comply with the terms and conditions of the permit, or if the activity or project fails to comply with Tribal ordinances or Tribal land use laws, the Permit Administrator shall not issue a CO and the land use activity or project shall not be occupied, used, or operated in any way. The Permit Administrator shall set forth his/her reasons for such denial in a detailed written decision, and shall send a copy of his/her decision to the permittee.
- 6. The permittee may appeal the Permit Administrator's decision by sending a written response to the Permit Administrator within thirty days of denial. If the Permit

#### **Chapter 315**

#### **Land Development Ordinance**

Administrator does not change his or her decision, the permittee may appeal to the Tribal Court pursuant to the procedures set out in CITC 315.723

#### LAND-USE ZONE DESIGNATIONS

#### VILLAGE ZONE – V

#### **315.250** Purpose

The Village (V) zone is intended to promote a tribal community that allows for a variety of residential types such as single family, multi-family, assisted living options, that can share public utilities and infrastructure such as parks & open space. Furthermore, a large number of conditional uses are permitted such as safety services facilities, education and culture facilities, appropriately scaled retail, business and health facilities that complement and support the village zone.

- 1. The Village zone provides for a range of land uses and promotes effective and efficient use of land.
- 2. The Village zone is intended to assure the development of bicycle and pedestriansensitive, yet auto-accommodating, communities containing a variety of residential housing types and densities, mixed-use buildings, commercial uses, and employment opportunities.

#### 315.270 Uses permitted

In Village (V) zones, the following uses are permitted:

- 1. Single-family dwellings
- 2. Single-family manufactured homes on individual lots
- 3. Accessory Dwelling Units
- 4. Duplexes
- 5. Row Homes
- 6. Cluster Housing
- 7. Tiny Homes
- 8. Community Housing Rental
- 9. Open Space, Parks, plazas, and playgrounds
- 10. Governmental structures, recreation buildings, community buildings, safety and emergency facilities, library, museum

#### 315.290 Permitted Accessory Uses

In Village (V) zones, the following accessory uses are permitted:

#### Chapter 315

#### **Land Development Ordinance**

- 1. Uses, buildings, and structures customarily incidental to any of the principal permitted uses and located on the same lot
- 2. Home occupations
- 3. Parking areas
- 4. Signage and wayfinding signage are subject to signage section 315.535.
- 5. Temporary buildings for uses incidental to construction work, which shall be removed immediately upon completion or abandonment of construction work. In no case shall such buildings remain on premises longer than 10 days after the receipt of a Certificate of Occupancy or the expiration of construction permits.
- 6. Accessory Dwelling Units (ADU's).

#### 315.300 Conditional uses permitted

In Village (V) zones, the following uses and their accessory uses are conditional permitted uses:

- 1. Religious Institutions
- 2. School facilities: nursery, day care, primary, elementary, middle school, junior high, or high school
- 3. Utility substation or pumping station, not including outside storage
- 4. Theaters
- 5. Home Based Business
- 6. Commercial Sales and Servicing of consumer goods (examples: bike shop, bookstore, clothing store, jeweler)
- 7. Commercial Food and Sundries (examples: bakery, butcher shop, convenience store, delicatessen, gift store)
- 8. Commercial Lifestyle and Recreation (examples: art gallery, barber, hair salon, coffee shop, health club/gym, restaurants, pubs, dance/yoga/martial arts studio)
- 9. Commercial Service (examples: banking, child day care, dry cleaners, postal service, laundromat, locksmith, telecommunication services)
- 10. Commercial General Office (examples: insurance agencies, health service, nonprofit organizations, professional-type services, real estate offices)
- 11. Group and/or Assisted Living Facilities

## **Land Development Ordinance**

#### **Development Standards** 315.320

Development Standards for Village Permitted Uses									
	DU per	Lot	Min. Lot	Setbacks		Setbacks		Lot	
	Lot	Size	Width	Front	Side	Back	Building Heights	´	Parking
Single Family Dwelling	1	6,000sf	60'	20'	5' min. & 13' total	10'	35'	35%	Min. 2 cars
Duplex Dwelling	2	4,500sf per DU	60'	20'	0' and 7' on ends.	10'	35'	35%	Min. 2 cars/DU
Multi- Family Dwelling	3 to 12	1,500sf per DU	70'	15'	13'	10'	35'	45%	Min. 1.5 cars/DU
Row Homes	5	2,000sf per DU	20' per DU (max 130')	15'	0' or 15' on ends	15'	35'	50%	Min. 1 car Attached, +.5 /DU
Cluster Homes	4 to 16	1,800sf per DU	60'	15'	7' or 10' b/w homes	8'	18'	60%	Min. 1.5 cars/DU
Tiny Home	1	2,000sf per DU	35'	15'	8'	8'	18'	60%	Min. 1.5 cars/DU
Accessory Dwelling Unit	N/A	N/A	N/A	20'	10'	10'	18'	45% total	
Accessory Structures	N/A	N/A	N/A	5'	5' or 15' on corner	5'	14'	45% total	

#### **Chapter 315**

#### **Land Development Ordinance**

#### **EMPLOYMENT ZONE - E**

#### **315.330** Purpose

The E (Employment) zone is intended to promote a holistic tribal community that allows for a variety of employment opportunities such as government facilities, business & professional offices, retail, private and public assembly/amusement, and light industrial. Furthermore, a number of conditional uses are permitted such as residential dwellings, RV/travel parks, manufacturing, fabricating, processing materials, and other activities with similar traffic impacts to surrounding land-uses.

- 1. The Employment zone provides for a range and variety of land uses that promotes economic development with effective and efficient use of land.
- 2. The Employment zone is intended to support the economic development of Tribal enterprises, Tribal member entrepreneurs, Tribal member employment, and private partnerships that support CIT's goals.

#### 315.340 Uses permitted

In Employment (E) zones, the following uses are permitted:

	Employment Categories					
Permitted Uses	Neighborhood Commercial	General Commercial	Office Commercial	Light Industrial		
Government Facilities	Y	Y	Y	N		
Business/ Professional offices	Υ	Υ	Υ	Υ		
Casino or gaming facilities	N	Υ	Υ	N		
General commercial	N	Υ	Υ	N		
Neighborhood commercial	Υ	N	Υ	N		
Financial institutions	Υ	Υ	Υ	N		
Health & medical facilities	Υ	Y	Υ	N		
Multi-tenant commercial facilities	Υ	Υ	Υ	Υ		
Barber & beauty shops	Υ	Υ	N	N		
Gift shops	Υ	Υ	Υ	N		
Hotel & motel facilities	N	Υ	Υ	N		
Restaurant or eating establishments	Υ	Υ	Υ	N		
Veterinary or animal hospital	Υ	Υ	Υ	N		
Animal boarding	N	Υ	N	N		
Fuel service stations	Υ	Υ	Υ	Υ		
Public & private assembly facilities	Υ	Υ	Υ	N		
Convention/meeting facilities	N	Υ	Υ	N		
Whole sale supply	N	Υ	N	Υ		
Storage facilities	N	Υ	N	Υ		

Coquille Indian Tribe

#### **Chapter 315**

#### **Land Development Ordinance**

Utility operation and facilities	Υ	Υ	Υ	Υ
Commercial fishing	N	Υ	N	Υ
Light industrial (compounding, packaging, processing, repairing, fabricating, & marshaling)	N	N	N	Y
Shipping	Υ	Υ	Υ	Υ
Servicing of equipment, materials, & supplies	Y	Υ	N	Υ

Any other use similar to the above uses, as approved by the Planning Review Team or Tribal Council, as described in the Ordinance.

#### 315.350 Permitted Accessory Uses

In Employment (E) zones, the following accessory uses are permitted:

1. Resort pool or aquatic facility.

#### 315.360 Conditional uses permitted

In Employment (E) zones, the following uses and their accessory uses are conditional permitted uses:

- 1. School facilities: nursery, day care, primary, elementary, middle school, junior high, or high school;
- 2. Tower for utility, communications, wind energy, or structures having similar impacts;
- 3. Hospital, sanitarium, rest home, and nursing home;
- 4. Shared parking facilities; and
- 5. Caretaker residence.

#### 315.370 Development Standards

In Employment (E) zone all development shall conform:

Development Standards for Employment Permitted Uses								
Employment Categories		um Lot dards	Setbacks		Max. Building			
Categories	Area	Width	Front	Side	Rear	Height		
Neighborhood Commercial	Will be based on location and type of use. New parcels must have adequate area for		20 ft.	20 ft.	20 ft.	35 ft.		
General Commercial			20 ft.	30 ft.	30 ft.	45 ft.		

#### Chapter 315

Office Commercial	setbacks, parking, access, and	30 ft.	20 ft.	20 ft.	45 ft.
Light Industrial	landscaping.	30 ft.	30 ft.	30 ft.	60 ft.

- 1. The minimum lot size shall be determined by the Planning Review Team based on type of facilities available.
- 2. Every site shall be adequately served by water, sewage disposal, and improved roads, or final approval of the site development plan shall be contingent on assurances for the provision of the necessary facilities.
- 3. Setbacks to roads and/or property lines, when they exist, shall be utilized for landscaping and/or pedestrian improvements, subject to Planning Review Team approval.
- 4. Zero lot line development is allowed subject to Planning Review Team approval, and must conform to Fire Code in effect at the time of development.
- 5. A vision clearance area shall be maintained at the intersection of two rights-of-way, or a right-of-way and a driveway. The vision clearance area shall extend thirty (30) feet from the intersection of the right-of-way lines or a right-of-way line and a driveway. No structure, vegetation or embankment shall be permitted in a vision clearance area in excess of two (2) feet in height above the center of the road or driveway, subject to staff approval.
- 6. On-street parking and off-street parking for each commercial use shall be adequate to serve the permitted use, and may be located on adjacent parcels.
- 7. Off-street parking areas and setbacks adjacent to Village zoned areas shall be adequately landscaped and screened to create a visual buffer.
- 8. Auto access shall be designed to cause minimum interference with traffic movements on abutting streets. Where necessary, additional rights-of-way shall be dedicated to maintain adequate traffic circulation. Setbacks shall be reviewed when requiring a dedication of additional right-of-way.
- 9. The arrangement of buildings, lighting, parking areas, signs, and other facilities shall be designed and oriented to minimize noise and glare effects on adjacent residential properties.
- 10. Pedestrian access shall be considered in the design of site features to provide a clear, unobstructed path in which pedestrians are not required to share their space with autos.
- 11. A structure shall not exceed forty (40) feet in height. Structures such as chimneys, spires, domes, elevator shaft housings, towers, aerials, flagpoles, agricultural buildings, and other similar objects not used for human occupancy are not subject to the building height limitations of this Ordinance.

#### **Chapter 315**

#### **Land Development Ordinance**

#### FOREST ZONE F

#### **315.385** Purpose

The purpose of the Forest Zone is to limit development and preserve the Coquille Tribe's Forest lands to the management of natural forest growth and harvest. The zone is to conserve forest lands by maintaining the forest land base and to protect the forest economy by making possible economically efficient forest practices that assure the continuous growing and harvesting of forest tree species as the leading use of forest land consistent with sound management of soil, air, water, and fish and wildlife resources and to provide for recreational opportunities and agriculture.

#### 315.390 Prohibited Uses

Subdivisions, Single Family, Multi-family Residences, planned developments, general commercial, and light industrial uses are not consistent with the purpose and intent of this zone and are prohibited.

#### 315.395 Allowed Uses

The F zone places primary emphasis on forest use but compatible uses are also allowed with a conditional use permit. These include uses to conserve soil, air and water quality and to provide for fish and wildlife resources, agriculture and recreational opportunities appropriate in a forest environment. Also included are locationally dependent uses such as communication towers, and mineral and aggregate resources.

#### **OPEN SPACE ZONE O-S**

#### **315.400** Purpose

The purpose of the Open Space Zone is to establish uses for land that are regarded as unbuildable, tidelands, and lands that are being held or used for recreation, conservation or open space purposes. Land use permitted in this zone include aquaculture, hunting areas, camping and picnicking, hiking, and recreational trail systems.

#### 315.403 Prohibited Uses

Subdivisions, Single Family, Multi-family Residences and planned developments as well as those uses authorized for E zones are not consistent with the purpose and intent of this zone and are prohibited.

Coquille Indian Tribe

#### **Chapter 315**

#### **Land Development Ordinance**

#### AGRICULTURAL ZONE A

#### **315.405** Purpose

The Agricultural (A) Zone is applied in areas characterized by small farm operations or areas with a mixture of good and poor farm soils where the existing land use pattern is a mixture of large and small farm units. The farm operations range widely in size and could include grazing of livestock, orchards, grains and grasses, decorative trees and specialty crops.

#### 315.410 Prohibited Uses

Subdivision and planned developments as well as those uses authorized for E zones are not consistent with the purpose of this zone and are prohibited.

#### 315.415 Allowed Uses

Within an A Zone no building, structure or premises shall be used, arranged or designed to be used, erected, structurally altered or enlarged except for one or more of the following uses:

- 1. Farm crop production.
- 2. The propagation or harvesting of a forest product.
- 3. Buildings, other than dwellings, customarily provided in conjunction with farm use.
- 4. Operations for the exploration for minerals

#### **PARKING**

#### 315.450 Minimum off-street parking space requirements

The minimum off-street parking space requirements are as follows:

- 1. Single family dwellings must have a minimum of two parking spaces.
- 2. Multiple family dwellings must have a minimum of three parking spaces for each two units.
- 3. Projects in the E zones must provide for an appropriate amount of off-street parking relative to the size of the proposed operation. The amount of off-street parking needed and to be made available shall be described and documented in the application for a building or conditional use permit for development in such zones.
- 4. Parking spaces in a public street, including an alley, shall not be eligible as fulfilling any part of the off-street parking requirements.

#### 315.455 Design requirements for off-street parking

Driveways and turnarounds providing access to parking areas shall conform to the following provisions:

#### Chapter 315

- 1. A driveway for a single-family or two-family dwelling shall have a minimum width of 10 feet.
- 2. Except for a single-family or two-family dwelling, groups of more than three parking spaces shall be provided with adequate aisles or turn- around areas so that all vehicles may enter the street in a forward manner.
- 3. Except for a single-family or two-family dwelling, more than three parking spaces shall be served by a driveway designed and constructed to facilitate the flow of traffic on and off the site, with due regard to pedestrian and vehicle safety, and shall be clearly and permanently marked and defined. In no case shall two-way and one-way driveways be less than 24 feet and 12 feet respectively.
- 4. Driveways, aisles, turnaround areas and ramps shall have minimum vertical clearance of 12 feet for their entire length and width but such clearance may be reduced in parking structures.
- 5. Service drives to public streets shall have a minimum vision clearance area formed by the intersection of the driveway center line, the street right-of-way line, and a straight line joining said lines through points 20 feet from their intersection. No obstruction over 24 inches in height that has a cross section over 12 inches shall be permitted in such area.
- 6. The following off-street parking development and maintenance shall apply in all cases, except single-family or two-family dwellings:
  - A. Parking areas, aisles and turnarounds shall be paved with concrete, asphaltic or comparable surfacing, for off- street vehicle areas.
  - B. Parking areas, aisles and turnarounds shall have provisions made for the on-site collection of drainage waters to eliminate sheet flow of such waters onto sidewalks, public rights-of-way, and abutting private property.
  - C. Approaches shall be paved with concrete surfacing. In the event that a street is not paved, the approach may be maintained to the same standard as the street until the street is paved.
  - D. Spaces shall be permanently and clearly marked.
  - E. Wheel stops and bumper guards shall be provided where appropriate for spaces abutting a property line or building, and no vehicle shall overhang a public right-of-way or other property line.
  - F. Except for a residential development which has landscaped yards, parking facilities shall include landscaping to cover not less than seven percent of the area devoted to parking facilities. The landscaping shall be uniformly distributed throughout the parking area and may consist of trees, shrubs, ground cover or related material.
  - G. Artificial lighting which may be provided shall be deflected so as not to shine directly into adjoining dwellings or other types of living units and so as not to create a hazard to the public use of a street.

#### **Chapter 315**

#### **Land Development Ordinance**

#### **EXCEPTIONS**

#### 315.500 General provisions regarding accessory uses

Accessory uses shall comply with all requirements for the principal use except where specifically modified by this Ordinance and shall comply with the following limitations:

- 1. Fences, hedges and walls located within front yards shall not exceed a height of 3 ½ feet above ground level for a distance of 20 feet from the sidewalk or, if there is no sidewalk, the curb line, but if there is no sidewalk or curb, then the edge of the improved portion of the street.
- 2. A greenhouse or hothouse may be maintained accessory to a dwelling.
- 3. In a Village zone a side setback may be reduced to two feet for an accessory structure erected more than 65 feet from a street other than an alley, provided the structure is detached from other buildings by five feet or more and does not exceed a height of one story nor an area of 450 square feet.

#### 315.505 Projections from buildings

Cornices, eaves, gutters, chimneys, flues, belt courses, leaders, sills, pilasters, lintels, ornamental features, and other similar architectural features may project not more than 18 inches into a required yard. Awnings, canopies, and sunshades, may project out not more than 12 feet into the required yard.

#### 315.510 Maintenance of minimum ordinance requirements

No lot area, yard, or other open space or required off-street parking or loading areas existing on or after the effective date of in this Ordinance shall be reduced in area, dimension, or size below the minimum required by this Ordinance, nor shall any lot area, yard, or other open space or off-street parking or loading area which is required by this Ordinance for one use be used as the lot area, yard, or other open space or off-street parking or loading area requirement for any other use.

#### 315.515 Exceptions to setback requirements

In the case of dwellings, the following exception to the front setback requirement shall apply in any zone: If there are dwellings on both abutting lots with front setbacks of less than the required setback for the zone, the front setback for the lot need not exceed the average front setback of the abutting dwellings. If there is a dwelling on one abutting lot with a front setback of less than the required setback for the zone, the front setback for the lot need not exceed a setback one-half way between the depth of the abutting lot and the required front setback.

## Chapter 315

#### **Land Development Ordinance**

#### 315.520 Access

All lots shall abut a street other than an alley for a width of at least 25 feet.

#### 315.525 Vision clearance areas

Vision clearance areas shall be established at intersections. The distance determining the size of a vision clearance area shall be 30 feet.

#### **SIGNS**

## 315.530 General provisions

- 1. General Location of Signs. No sign allowed by this Ordinance shall be placed so that it is supported within a public right-of-way, unless this Ordinance specifies otherwise. Some signs may project over rights-of-way, subject to the standards for that type of sign or for the underlying zoning district.
- 2. Permits. Signs will be reviewed and permitted through the building permits process before the installation of all signs.

### 315.535 Signs in Village Zone

This section shall apply to all Village zones.

### 1. Size

- A. Each dwelling unit, including home occupations, shall be allowed one sign with a maximum of two faces not to exceed two square feet in area per face. Signs must be set back at least 15 feet from the edge of the curb line or the edge of the improved street travel surface. Signs shall not exceed three and one-half feet above ground level. Planned unit developments, other housing complexes, and other uses without structures thereon shall be allowed one additional sign with a maximum of two faces not exceeding 32 square feet in area per face to identify the premises.
- B. Residential care facilities and multifamily dwellings located in a multifamily zone shall be allowed one wall-mounted or double-faced free-standing sign not to exceed 15 square feet. Signs may be indirectly illuminated. Signs must be set back at least 15 feet from the edge of the curb line or the edge of the improved street travel surface. Signs shall not exceed three and one-half feet above ground level if located within 20 feet of the applicable "edge."
- C. Signs for commercial and civic uses shall be allowed through an administrative conditional use permit process. Signs are not to exceed 15 square feet of area on one side. Signs shall not be within a public right-of-way. Permits may be issued to

## **Chapter 315**

#### **Land Development Ordinance**

the sign contractor, to the owner or operator of the business or to the leaseholder of the property.

- D. Applications for sign permits shall contain at least the following information:
  - i. Name and address of the applicant.
  - ii. Location of the property on which the sign is to be erected, and the amount of lot and building frontages.
  - iii. Dimensions of the sign and its height above grade.
  - iv. A sketch showing the location and dimensions of all existing and proposed signs on the premises.
  - v. A sketch or description of the advertising copy on the proposed sign.
  - vi. If required, a drawing showing clearly the structural elements.
- 2. Installation and Maintenance

The installation of all signs shall comply with all required safety rules and laws. No sign shall be erected, relocated, or maintained that prevents free ingress to or egress from any door, window, or fire escape required by the Coquille Indian Tribal Code. All signs shall be maintained in a safe, complete, and neat condition.

3. Applicability of Ordinance

Murals shall not be considered signs as long as they contain no advertising.

#### 315.540 Signs allowed without permit

- 1. Public signs.
- 2. Memorial signs One memorial sign per building is allowed.
- 3. Private traffic direction signs Signs shall be less than three square feet and may be placed within a public right-of-way subject to approval by the Tribal Council or their designee subject to the following requirements:
  - A. Color The sign must have a blue background with white lettering.
  - B. Dimensions. The sign shall be less than three square feet of surface area on one side.
  - C. Clearance The sign must be located a minimum of seven feet above grade. The mounting post cannot be located closer than two feet to the curb face or edge of the street travel surface if no curb is present. No portion of the sign may project beyond the curb face or the edge of the street travel surface.
  - D. Illumination The sign shall not be illuminated.
- 4. Nameplates Nameplates shall not exceed two square feet. One nameplate per dwelling unit or business allowed.
- 5. Construction signs A maximum of four signs per street frontage shall be allowed, not to exceed a total sign area of 24 square feet in Village zones, 32 square feet in commercial zones, and 32 square feet in all other zones. If there is more than one sign then the total combined sign area of the individual signs shall not exceed the maximum area specified above. These signs shall be removed within 30 days after the issuance of the certificate of

## Chapter 315

#### **Land Development Ordinance**

- occupancy or completion (whichever is applicable) or within 30 days of the signing of the final plat for land developments.
- 6. Real estate signs Signs are limited to one double-faced sign per property, not to exceed six square feet in Village zones, 24 square feet in commercial zones, or 32 square feet in all other zones. A real estate sign advertising a development of multiple properties, such as a subdivision or industrial park, shall not exceed four square feet per lot, with a maximum size of 32 square feet in total area. For multiple properties, one sign of the maximum size may be allowed on each street frontage if the signs are 400 feet apart measured along the frontage.
- 7. Vehicle signs.
- 8. Window signs.
- 9. Political campaign signs Signs shall be less than six square feet per sign in Village zones and less than 32 square feet per sign in all other zones. Signs shall be removed within five days after the voting date.
- 10. Special event signs Signs shall be removed within 14 days from the date the sign is displayed. These signs may contain or consist of banners, posters, pennants, ribbons, streamers, flags or other similar moving devices.
- 11. Freestanding signs In commercial zones (L-I and G-C), freestanding signs, including sandwich boards, that comply with the sign restrictions set out in this Ordinance may be placed on sidewalks adjacent to the premises to which the sign relates; provided, that such sign shall not occupy more than 20 percent of the width of the sidewalk measured from the property line. The area of one face of the sign shall not exceed nine square feet and the sign shall remain on the sidewalk only during business hours of the adjacent premises.
- 12. Attraction devices Devices, designs, or symbols which may consist of windsocks, posters, pennants, flags, ribbons, streamers, or other similar non-automated, non-electronic, or non-illuminated moving devices. These devices may not encroach upon a public right-of-way if they are a hazard to pedestrian or vehicular traffic.
- 13. National, state, or Tribal flags Flags shall be maintained in a manner that befits the respect due to the entities they represent.
- 14. Sign maintenance or changing copy Painting, repainting, cleaning and other normal maintenance, changing advertising copy on a billboard, on a reader board, or on a permitted sign. Repair of a sign or a sign structure equal to or less than 50 percent of the replacement value of the sign or structure unless a structural change is made. Repair of a sign or a sign structure greater than 50 percent of the replacement value of the sign or sign structure will require applicable permits.

## **Chapter 315**

### **Land Development Ordinance**

#### 315.545 Prohibited signs

- 1. Obscene or indecent signs Any visual representation or verbal description of sexual conduct, sexual excitement, sadomasochistic abuse, or excretory functions or products.
- 2. Signs interfering with traffic No sign shall be installed which will unduly distract or confuse operators of motor vehicles or aircraft by using words such as "stop," "look" and "danger" by an appearance similar to traffic signs or lights. No sign may contain lighting that will distract operators of motor vehicles or aircraft, including but not limited to rotating or animated signs, motion (video) picture, strobe or zip lights, rotary beacons, flashing lights, search lights, festoons of lights, strings of twirlers or propellers or flares.
- 3. Defunct businesses Signs that advertise an activity, business, product or services no longer operating or available on the premises, including all related off-premises signs, shall either be removed, covered, painted over or otherwise obscured within 30 days of the termination of said activity or business.
- 4. Unsafe signs No person shall construct or maintain any sign or supporting structure except in a safe and structurally sound condition. If the Executive Director of the Tribe finds that any sign regulated herein is unsafe or insecure as to constitute a real and present danger to the public, a written notice shall be mailed to the last known address of the sign owner and the property leaseholder. If said sign is not removed, altered or repaired to comply with the standards herein set forth within 30 days after such notice, the Tribal Council or its designee, may cause said sign to be removed or altered to comply at the expense of the sign owner or property leaseholder of the property on which it is located. The Tribal Council or its designee may cause any sign that is determined to be an immediate peril to persons or property to be removed summarily and without notice at the expense of the sign or property leaseholder.
- 5. Nonconforming signs Signs that were lawfully installed prior to the adoption of the Ordinance codified in this section may remain subject to subsection (4) of this section. Normal maintenance and repair are allowed provided the cost of the structural repairs does not exceed 50 percent of the replacement value of the sign. If the structural repairs exceed 50 percent of the replacement value of the sign it must conform to the current requirements.

#### **VARIANCES**

#### 315.600 Authorization to grant or deny variances

The Tribal Council or its designee may authorize variances from the requirements of this Ordinance where it can be shown that, owing to special and unusual circumstances related to a specific piece of property, the literal interpretation of this Ordinance would cause an undue or unnecessary hardship, except that no variance shall be granted to allow the use of property for purposes not authorized within the zone in which the proposed use would be located. In granting

## **Chapter 315**

#### **Land Development Ordinance**

a variance, the Tribal Council or its designee may attach conditions which it finds necessary to protect the best interests of the surrounding property or neighborhood and to otherwise achieve the purposes of this Ordinance.

#### 315.605 Conditions for granting a variance

No variance shall be granted unless it can be shown that all of the following conditions exist:

- 1. Exceptional or extraordinary conditions apply to the property that do not apply generally to other properties in the same zone or vicinity, which conditions are a result of lot size or shape, topography, or other circumstances over which the applicant has no control.
- 2. The variance is necessary for the preservation of a property right of the applicant substantially the same as is possessed by leaseholders of other property in the same zone or vicinity.
- 3. The authorization of the variance will not be materially detrimental to the purposes of this Ordinance, be injurious to property in the zone or vicinity in which the property is located, or otherwise conflict with the objectives of any Tribal development plan or policy.
- 4. The variance requested is the minimum variance which will alleviate the hardship.

### 315.610 Variance procedure

The procedures to be followed in applying for and acting on a variance shall be substantially the same as those provided in CITC 315.705 for the case of a conditional use. Authorized variances will be documented in the form of a land use permit.

#### NON-CONFORMING USES

#### 315.650 Continuation of nonconforming use or structure

A nonconforming structure or use may be continued and maintained in reasonable repair but shall not be altered or extended. The extension of a nonconforming use to a portion of a structure which was arranged or designed for the nonconforming use at the time this Ordinance is adopted shall not be considered an extension of a nonconforming use.

#### 315.655 Nonconforming structure

A structure conforming with respect to use but nonconforming with respect to height, setback, coverage or access may be altered or extended if the alteration or extension does not deviate further from the standards of this Ordinance.

## **Chapter 315**

## **Land Development Ordinance**

## 315.660 Discontinuance of a nonconforming use

- 1. If a nonconforming use involving a structure is discontinued from use for a period of one year, a further use of the property shall be for a conforming use.
- 2. If a nonconforming use not involving a structure is discontinued for a period of six months, further use of the property shall be for a conforming use.

## 315.665 Termination of certain nonconforming uses

A nonconforming use not involving a structure or one involving a structure having a replacement value of less than \$200.00 shall be discontinued within two years from the date this Ordinance is adopted.

#### 315.670 Change of a nonconforming use

If a nonconforming use is replaced by another use, the new use shall conform to this Ordinance and shall not subsequently be replaced by a nonconforming use.

#### 315.675 Destruction of a nonconforming use

If a nonconforming structure or a structure containing a nonconforming use is destroyed by any cause to an extent exceeding 80 percent of the fair market value, a future structure or use shall conform to this Ordinance.

## 315.680 Completion of structure

- 1. Nothing contained in this Ordinance shall require any change in the plans, construction, alteration, or designated use of a structure for which a building permit has been issued and construction work has commenced prior to the adoption of this Ordinance, except that if the building is nonconforming or is intended for a nonconforming use it shall be completed and in use within two years from the time the building permit is issued.
- 2. Whenever a use has become nonconforming through the adoption of this Ordinance, then the Tribal Council may permit as a conditional use the alteration or extension of such use.

#### 315.685 Temporary nonconforming uses

Permits for temporary nonconforming uses of property may be granted by the Tribal Council or their designee under the following procedures, terms, conditions and limitations:

- 1. No temporary nonconforming use shall be permitted for a period in excess of 120 days.
- 2. No temporary use permit shall be granted unless it is determined that the proposed use will not adversely affect property within the neighborhood. For purposes of this section, "neighborhood" is defined as property within 300 feet of the proposed use.

## **Chapter 315**

#### **Land Development Ordinance**

3. Temporary use permits shall be made subject to such conditions and limitations as will protect public health and safety.

#### **CONDITIONAL USES**

#### 315.690 Standards governing conditional uses

A conditional use shall comply with the standards of the zone in which it is located except as these standards may have been modified in authorizing the conditional use or as otherwise provided as follows:

- 1. Setbacks In a village zone, yards shall be at least two-thirds the height of the principal structure. In any zone, additional yard requirements may be imposed.
- 2. Height Exception A church or governmental building may be built to exceed the height limitations of the zone in which it is located up to a maximum height of 50 feet if the total floor area of the building does not exceed one and one-half times the area of the site and if the yard dimensions in each case are equal to at least two-thirds of the height of the principal structure.
- 3. Limitation on Access to Property and on Openings to Buildings The Tribe may limit or prohibit vehicle access from a conditional use to a residential street and it may limit or prohibit building openings within 50 feet of residential property in a Village zone if the openings will cause glare or excessive noise or will otherwise adversely affect adjacent residential property.

## 4. Schools

- A. Nursery schools shall provide and maintain at least 100 square feet of outdoor play area per child. A sight-obscuring fence at least four feet but not more than six feet high shall separate the play area from abutting lots.
- B. Primary schools shall provide one acre of site area for each 90 pupils or one acre for every three classrooms, whichever is greater.
- C. Elementary schools shall provide one acre of site area for each 75 pupils or one acre for every two and one-half classrooms, whichever is greater.
- 5. Service Stations A service station may be permitted as a conditional use if adjacent property is not adversely affected by noise, smoke, odors or glare, and if the service station does not interfere with the shopping pattern of a retail business district.
- 6. Utility Substation or Pumping Substation In the case of a utility substation or pumping sub-station, the Tribe may waive the minimum lot size requirement only if it is determined that the waiver will not have a detrimental effect on adjacent property.
- 7. Rowhouses Provision shall be made for rowhouses to have adequate access to rear yard areas.

8.

## **Chapter 315**

#### **Land Development Ordinance**

#### 315.700 Authorization to grant or deny conditional uses

Uses designated in this Ordinance as conditional uses may be permitted, enlarged, or otherwise altered upon authorization by the Tribal Council in accordance with the standards and procedures set forth in this Ordinance. Conditional uses are those which may be found appropriate, desirable, convenient, or necessary in the applicable district subject to the following standards:

- 1. The use is found to be compatible with adjacent uses or may be made compatible through the imposition of conditions; and
- 2. The location, size, and design are consistent with existing adjacent uses or other uses allowed outright in the same zone district; and
- 3. The use will not have a significant traffic impact compared to existing adjacent uses or other uses allowed outright in the same zone district;
- 4. The use complies with other applicable development standards in the same zone district. Conditions may include increasing the required lot size or yard dimensions, limiting the height of buildings, controlling the location and number of vehicle access points, increasing the street width, increasing the number of off-street parking and loading spaces required, limiting the number, size, and location of signs, and requiring screening and landscaping to protect adjacent property. In the case of a use existing prior to the effective date of this Ordinance and that is classified in this Ordinance as a conditional use, any change in use or in lot area or in any alteration of the structure shall conform with the requirements dealing with conditional uses.

#### 315.705 Application for a conditional use

A leaseholder or his authorized agent may initiate a request for a conditional use or the modification of an existing conditional use by filing an application, with the \$250 application fee, with the Tribe using forms prescribed for the purpose. The application shall be accompanied by a site plan, drawn to scale, showing the dimensions of the subject property and arrangement of the proposed development and names and addresses of leaseholders within 100 feet. The Permit Administrator may require other drawings or information necessary to achieve an understanding of the proposed use and its relationship to surrounding properties. The application will be reviewed for completeness prior to scheduling the public hearing and initiating notice procedures. An application must be submitted at least 30 days prior to a scheduled hearing.

#### 315.710 Hearing on conditional use

A public hearing will be held before the Tribal Council on any conditional use permit applications. The Tribal Council will determine whether or not the application should be approved. The hearing will be held subject to CITC 315.720. By resolution, the Tribal Council may designate an alternative body to hold the hearing authorized under this Section.

Coquille Indian Tribe

## **Chapter 315**

### **Land Development Ordinance**

#### **315.715** Notices

At least 30 days' notice of a hearing shall be mailed to the applicant, any Coquille Tribal entities with landholdings or activities located within one mile, and the leaseholders of property located within 1000 feet of the property which is the subject of the notice. The notice shall include the following:

- 1. Explain the nature of the application and the proposed use or uses which could be authorized;
- 2. List the applicable criteria from the Ordinance and plan that apply to the application;
- 3. Set forth the street address or other easily understood geographical reference to the property;
- 4. State the date, time and location of the hearing;
- 5. State that a failure to raise an issue at the hearing in person or by letter or to provide sufficient specific documentation to afford an opportunity to respond to an issue precludes appeal on that issue;
- 6. Include the name of the Tribal representative to contact and the telephone number where additional information may be obtained;
- 7. State that a copy of the application, all documents and evidence relied on by the applicant and applicable criteria are available for inspection at no cost and copies will be provided; and,
- 8. Include a general explanation of the requirements for submission of testimony and the procedure for conduct of the hearing.

#### 315.720 Hearing procedures

- 1. At the commencement of the hearing, a statement shall be made to those in attendance that:
  - A. Lists the applicable criteria for the application;
  - B. States that testimony, arguments and evidence must be directed toward the applicable criteria or other criteria that the person believes apply to the application; and,
  - C. States that failure to raise an issue accompanied by statements or evidence sufficient to afford the decision maker and the parties an opportunity to respond to the issue precludes appeal based on that issue.
- 2. Prior to the conclusion of the hearing, any participant may request an opportunity to present additional evidence, arguments or testimony regarding the application. The hearings body shall grant such request by continuing the public hearing to a time and date certain at least seven days from the date of the current hearing. An opportunity shall be provided at the continued hearing for parties to present and rebut new evidence,

## **Chapter 315**

#### **Land Development Ordinance**

arguments or testimony. If new written evidence is submitted at the continued hearing, any party may request, prior to the conclusion of the continued hearing, that the record be left open for at least seven days in order to submit arguments in response to the new written evidence. The record shall be closed at the end of said seven days. The hearings body may reopen the hearing, by motion, for additional evidence, arguments or testimony at their discretion.

- 3. A continuance of a hearing shall be subject to the -day limitation unless the continuance is requested or agreed to by the applicant.
- 4. Unless waived by the applicant, the hearings body shall allow the applicant at least seven days after the record is closed to all other parties to submit final written arguments in support of the application. The applicant's final arguments shall be considered part of the record, but shall not include any new evidence. This final seven-day period shall not be subject to the 120-day limitation.
- 5. The failure of the leaseholder or any other party to receive notice as provided in this Ordinance shall not invalidate the proceedings.
- 6. For the purposes of this Section:
  - A. "Argument" means assertions and analysis regarding the satisfaction or violation of legal standards or policy believed relevant by the proponent to a decision. "Argument" does not include facts.
  - B. "Evidence" means facts, documents, data or other information offered to demonstrate compliance or noncompliance with the standards believed by the proponent to be relevant to the decision.

#### APPEALS TO THE TRIBAL COURT

#### **315.723** Appeals

Except as otherwise provided in this Ordinance, decisions of the Tribal Council or its designee regarding proposed activities under this Ordinance are appealable to the Tribal Court.

- 1. All appeals shall be filed with the Tribal Court within 10 days of the date that notice of the decision is mailed to the parties of record, or within 10 days of the date that the decision would have been deemed denied pursuant to the relevant sections of this Ordinance. Any appeal filed outside of this deadline shall be dismissed with prejudice.
- 2. Appeals must be submitted on appeal forms provided by the Tribe and clearly identify the issues of appeal, the party status of the appellant, the applicable review criteria and include the appropriate appeal fee.
- 3. Failure to raise an issue either orally or in writing at a public hearing concerning the matter precludes appeal based on that issue.
- 4. Upon receipt of the notice of appeal, the Tribal Court shall schedule a hearing on the appeal to be conducted within thirty (30) days of receipt of the notice of appeal. Written

## **Chapter 315**

#### **Land Development Ordinance**

- notice of the time, date and place of the hearing shall be delivered to the appellant no later than five (5) days before the scheduled date of the hearing.
- 5. The appellant and the Tribal Council or its designee may be represented by legal counsel at the hearing on the appeal at their own expense.
- 6. The Tribal Court's review of the decision shall be confined to the record developed by the before the Tribal Council or its designee unless good cause is shown to examine additional evidence.
- 7. The Tribal Court shall affirm the decision of the Tribal Council or its designee unless it finds, by clear and convincing evidence, that the decision is
  - A. unsupported by evidence;
  - B. arbitrary, capricious, or an abuse of discretion; or
  - C. contrary to law.
- 8. The Tribal Court shall issue its decision no later than fourteen (14) days following the hearing on the appeal. The decision of the Tribal Court shall be final and conclusive, and no appeal to a higher court shall be allowed.
- 9. The civil procedure rules of the Tribal Court shall apply to all appeal proceedings under this Ordinance, to the extent consistent with this Ordinance. Where there is a conflict, the provisions of this Ordinance shall apply.

#### 315.725 Finality of Decisions

Discretionary land use decisions of the Tribal Council shall be effective and final when they are reduced to writing and mailed to the applicant and other parties to the proceeding.

#### 315.800 Civil Penalties

Violation of, or failure to comply with, any provision of this Ordinance is punishable by a civil fine not to exceed \$750.00 per day.

#### 315.850 Conflicting laws

Where a conflict between this Ordinance and any other laws applicable to the same area exists, the more stringent limitation or requirement shall govern and prevail.

#### 315.860 Tribal Council Approval of Land Uses and Waiver of Requirements

1. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance, the Tribal Council may, by resolution, approve any use of Trust Land and/or waive any requirements of this Ordinance when the Tribal Council finds that:

## **Chapter 315**

#### **Land Development Ordinance**

- a. The time required to perform the procedures under this Ordinance is likely to jeopardize the financing or grant funding of a tribal government or tribal economic development project; or
- b. An emergency or disaster renders compliance with this Ordinance impracticable;
- 2. No appeal to Tribal Court shall be permissible when the Tribal Council exercises its authority under this section.

## 315.870 Severability

If a court of competent jurisdiction finds any provision of this Ordinance to be invalid or illegal under applicable law, such provision shall be severed from this ordinance and the remainder of this Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect.

#### 315.900 Sovereign Immunity

Nothing in this Ordinance waives the sovereign immunity of the Coquille Indian Tribe, its entities, its subsidiaries, or any of its officers, employees, board members, representatives or agents.

## **Chapter 315**

## **Land Development Ordinance**

## History of Amendments to Ordinance 315 Land Development Ordinance:

Approved Resolution CY1283, September 22, 2012

Adopted Resolution CY12111, November 17, 2012

Approved Resolution CY19051, May 9, 2019

Adopted Resolution CY19074, July 11, 2019

Approved Resolution CY19114, October 7, 2019 (name change from Tribal Land Use and Zoning Ordinance)

Adopted Resolution CY19121, December 12, 2019